

#### **RETURN BIDS TO:**

#### BRU@cic.gc.ca

#### Attn: Gregory Duret

#### FOR ELECTRONIC BIDS:

The BRU@cic.gc.ca electronic mailbox is equipped to send an automatic reply to all messages received. If you do not receive an automatic response, please contact the Contracting Authority to ensure your bid was received. Please note that it is the bidder's sole responsibility to ensure that all bids submitted are received in their entirety by Citizenship and Immigration Canada by the closing date and time indicated in this RFP.

#### **IMPORTANT NOTICE TO SUPPLIERS**

The Government Electronic Tendering Service on <u>buyandsell.gc.ca/tenders</u> will be the sole authoritative source for Government of Canada tenders that are subject to trade agreements or subject to departmental policies that require public advertising of tenders.

#### **REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL**

**Proposal To: Citizenship and Immigration Canada** We hereby offer to sell to Her Majesty the Queen in right of Canada, in accordance with the terms and conditions set out herein, referred to herein or attached hereto, the goods, services, and construction listed herein and on any attached sheets at the price(s) set out thereof.

Instructions : See Herein Instructions: Voir aux présentes Issuing Office – Bureau de distribution Citizenship and Immigration Canada Passport Material Management Division 70 Crémazie Gatineau, Québec K1A 0G3 Title – Sujet

Interim Federal Health Program (IFHP) Forecasting Model

Solicitation No. – N° de l'invitation	Date	
CIC - 146745	January 11, 2017	
Solicitation Closes – L'invitation	Time Zone	
prend fin at – à	Fuseau horaire	
2:00 <b>PM</b>		
on – January 23, 2017	EST	
F.O.B F.A.B.		
Plant-Usine: Destination:	Other-Autre: 🗌	
Address Inquiries to: - Adresser tout	tes questions à :	

#### BRU@cic.gc.ca

Telephone No. – N° de téléphone :

#### 873-408-0508

Destination – of Goods, Services, and Construction: Destination – des biens, services et construction : See Herein Delivery required - Livraison exigée See Herein

Vendor/firm Name and address

Raison sociale et adresse du fournisseur/de l'entrepreneur

Facsimile No. – N° de télécopieur Telephone No. – N° de téléphone Name and title of person authorized to sign on behalf of Vendor/firm

Nom et titre de la personne autorisée à signer au nom du fournisseur/de l'entrepreneur

(type or print)/ (taper ou écrire en caractères d'imprimerie)

Signature

Date





### TABLE OF CONTENTS

#### **PART 1 - GENERAL INFORMATION**

- 1.1 Introduction
- 1.2 Summary
- 1.3 Debriefings

#### **PART 2 - BIDDER INSTRUCTIONS**

- 2.1 Standard Instructions, Clauses and Conditions
- 2.2 Submission of Bids
- 2.3 Enquiries Bid Solicitation
- 2.4 Applicable Laws

#### **PART 3 - BID PREPARATION INSTRUCTIONS**

3.1 Bid Preparation Instructions

#### PART 4 - EVALUATION PROCEDURES AND BASIS OF SELECTION

- 4.1 Evaluation Procedures
- 4.2 Basis of Selection

#### **PART 5 - CERTIFICATIONS AND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION**

- 5.1 Certifications Required with the Bid
- 5.2 Certifications Precedent to Contract Award and Additional Information





# PART 7 - RESULTING CONTRACT CLAUSES (APPENDIX "A", APPENDIX "B" AND APPENDIX "C")

- A1. Standard Acquisition Clauses and Conditions Manual
- A2. Terms and Conditions of the Contract
- A3. Standard Instructions and Conditions
- A4. General Conditions
- B1. Priority of Documents
- B2. CIC Clauses
- B3. SACC Manual Clauses
- B4. Security Requirement
- B5. Period of Contract
- B6. Termination of Thirty Day Notice
- B7. Certifications / Compliance
- B8. Insurance Requirements
- B9. Closure of Government Offices
- B10. Statement of Work
- B11. Authorities
- C1. Basis of Payment
- C2. Method of Payment
- C3. Applicable Taxes
- C4. Invoicing Instructions
- C5. Travel and Living Expenses

#### **List of Appendices**

- Appendix "D" Statement of Work
- Appendix "E" Basis of Payment
- Appendix "F" Security Requirements Checklist
- Appendix "G" Vendor Information and Authorization Form





### **PART 1 - GENERAL INFORMATION**

#### 1.1 Introduction

The bid solicitation is divided into seven parts plus attachments as follows:

- Part 1 General Information: provides a general description of the requirement;
- Part 2 Bidder Instructions: provides the instructions, clauses and conditions applicable to the bid solicitation;
- Part 3 Bid Preparation Instructions: provides Bidders with instructions on how to prepare their bid;
- Part 4 Evaluation Procedures and Basis of Selection: indicates how the evaluation will be conducted, the evaluation criteria that must be addressed in the bid, and the basis of selection;
- Part 5 Certifications and Additional Information: includes the certifications and additional information to be provided;
- Part 6 Resulting Contract Clauses: includes the clauses and conditions that will apply to any resulting contract.

#### 1.2 Summary

1.2.1 Immigration, Refugee, Citizenship and Immigration Canada (IRCC) Migration Health Branch has a requirement for a Contractor to update the automated Interim Federal Health Program (IFHP) expenditure forecasting model.

#### 1.2.2 Single Contract

Canada is seeking to establish a contract for Updates to the automated Interim Federal Health Program (IFHP) expenditure forecasting model as defined in Appendix "D", Statement of Work, until June 30, 2017.

#### 1.3 Debriefings

After contract award, bidders may request a debriefing on the results of the bid solicitation process. Bidders should make the request to the Contracting Authority within fifteen (15) working days of receipt of the results of the bid solicitation process. The debriefing may be in writing, by telephone, or in person.



### **PART 2 - BIDDER INSTRUCTIONS**

#### 2.1 Standard Instructions, Clauses and Conditions

All Citizenship and Immigration Canada (CIC) instructions, clauses and conditions identified in the bid solicitation by number, date and title are set out in the CIC Website at <a href="http://www.cic.gc.ca/english/transparency/index.asp">http://www.cic.gc.ca/english/transparency/index.asp</a>

All SACC manual clauses for specific instructions not covered by the standard instructions identified in the bid solicitation by number, date and title are set out in the *Standard Acquisition Clauses and Conditions* Manual (<u>https://buyandsell.gc.ca/policy-and-guidelines/standard-acquisition-clauses-and-conditions-manual</u>) issued by Public Works and Government Services Canada.

Bidders who submit a bid agree to be bound by the instructions, clauses and conditions of the bid solicitation and accept the clauses and conditions of the resulting contract.

The <u>CIC-SI-001 (2016-05-26)</u> Standard Instructions – Goods or Services Competitive Requirements, are incorporated by reference into and form part of the bid solicitation.

#### 2.2 Submission of Bids

Bids must be submitted only to Citizenship and Immigration Canada by the date, time and place indicated on page 1 of the bid solicitation.

## Due to the nature of the bid solicitation, bids transmitted by facsimile to Citizenship and Immigration Canada will not be accepted.

#### 2.3 Enquiries - Bid Solicitation

All enquiries must be submitted in writing to the Contracting Authority no later than **Five (5)** calendar days before the bid closing date. Enquiries received after that time may not be answered.

Bidders should reference as accurately as possible the numbered item of the bid solicitation to which the enquiry relates. Care should be taken by Bidders to explain each question in sufficient detail in order to enable Canada to provide an accurate answer. Technical enquiries that are of a proprietary nature must be clearly marked "proprietary" at each relevant item. Items identified as "proprietary" will be treated as such except where Canada determines that the enquiry is not of a proprietary nature. Canada may edit the questions or may request that the Bidder do so, so that the proprietary nature of the question is eliminated, and the enquiry can be answered with copies to all Bidders. Enquiries not submitted in a form that can be distributed to all Bidders may not be answered by Canada.

#### 2.4 Applicable Laws

Any resulting contract must be interpreted and governed, and the relations between the parties determined by the laws in force in Ontario.





### **PART 3 - BID PREPARATION INSTRUCTIONS**

#### 3.1 Bid Preparation Instructions

Canada requests that bidders provide their bid in separately bound sections as follows:

Section I: Technical Bid (1 electronic copy)

Section II: Financial Bid (1 electronic copy)

Section III: Certifications (1 electronic copy)

Canada requests that respondents submit their response in unprotected (i.e. no password) PDF format by email and the size of the document cannot exceed 10MB. Emails exceeding 10MB will not be received.

Prices must appear in the financial bid only. No prices must be indicated in any other section of the bid.

#### Section I: Technical Bid

In their technical bid, Bidders should explain and demonstrate how they propose to meet the requirements and how they will carry out the Work. Bidders should demonstrate their capability and describe their approach in a thorough, concise and clear manner for carrying out the work.

The technical bid should address clearly and in sufficient depth the points that are subject to the evaluation criteria against which the bid will be evaluated. Simply repeating the statement contained in the bid solicitation is not sufficient. In order to facilitate the evaluation of the bid, Canada requests that Bidders address and present topics in the order of the evaluation criteria under the same headings. To avoid duplication, Bidders may refer to different sections of their bids by identifying the specific paragraph and page number where the subject topic has already been addressed.

#### Section II: Financial Bid

Bidders must submit their financial bid in accordance with Appendix "E", Basis of Payment The total amount of applicable taxes must be shown separately, if applicable.

Bidders should include the following information in their financial bid by completing Appendix "I", Vendor Information and Authorization and include it with their bid:

- 1. Their legal name;
- 2. Their Procurement Business Number (PBN); and
- 3. The name of the contact person (including this person's mailing address, phone and facsimile numbers, and email address) authorized by the Bidder to enter into communications with Canada with regards to:
  - a) their bid; and
  - b) any contract that may result from their bid.





Financial proposals must clearly identify firm prices in Canadian dollars.

The Bidder's firm price in response to this RFP and resulting contract(s) must include all overhead, general & administrative costs and profit. Included are the following costs that may be incurred in providing the required services: office space, computer hardware and software, word processing, preparation of reports, photocopying, courier services, facsimile services, telephone services, local travel expenses, and administration related to non-local travel expenses. "Local" as used here is defined as where the Work is to be performed in Canada as may be specified in the RFP and the resulting Contract(s).

Bidders must provide in their financial bid a price breakdown as detailed in Appendix "E", Basis of Payment.

#### 3.2 SACC Manual Clauses

#### C3011T (2010-01-11) - Exchange Rate Fluctuation

The requirement does not provide for exchange rate fluctuation protection. Any request for exchange rate fluctuation protection will not be considered and will render the bid non-responsive.

#### Section III: Certifications

Bidders must submit the required certifications and additional information required under Part 5.



### PART 4 - EVALUATION PROCEDURES AND BASIS OF SELECTION

#### 4.1 Evaluation Procedures

- (a) Bids will be assessed in accordance with the entire requirement of the bid solicitation including the technical and financial evaluation criteria.
- (b) An evaluation team composed of representatives of Canada will evaluate the bids.

#### 4.1.1 Technical Evaluation

#### 4.1.1.1 Mandatory Technical Criteria

The bid must meet the mandatory technical criteria specified below. The Bidder must provide the necessary documentation to support compliance with this requirement.

Mandatory requirements are evaluated on a simple pass or fail basis. Failure by a Bidder to meet any one of the mandatory requirements will render the Bidder's proposal **non-responsive and will not be given further consideration.** The treatment of mandatory requirements in any procurement process is absolute. Each mandatory technical criterion should be addressed separately.

Number	Mandatory Technical Criterion	Met/Not Met	Demonstrate how the requirement is met (Cross reference to proposed resource's resume as applicable)
M1	The bidder must submit a detailed approach that includes the work plan, task list and timelines for this project.		
M2	The bidder must provide a written summary that demonstrates they have undertaken at least one (1) project that was similar in scope and nature in developing expenditure forecasting models for health insurance plans. The summary must include a description of the health insurance plan, the types of expenditures forecasted by line of coverage (eg. health, dental, and pharmacy) and the date the forecasting model was completed.		





#### 4.1.1.2 Point Rated Technical Criteria

Each Technical Bid that meets all the Mandatory Requirements specified above will be evaluated and scored in accordance with the following point-rated evaluation criteria table(s). Each point rated technical criterion should be addressed separately.

Bids which fail to obtain a minimum of 17 points in total for the following Point-Rated Technical Criteria will be declared non-responsive.

Rated Cri	iteria			
Number	Requirement	Points Breakdown With Rationale Attached	Maximum Points	Points Allocated
R1	The Bidder should submit an approach that responds to IRCC's requirements as outlined in sections D4 of the statement of work.	<ul> <li>i. Unsatisfactory Approach: No information provided. No explanation of the issues or complexity was provided 0 pts</li> <li>ii. Poor Approach: limited understanding of the complexity of health insurance forecasting. Does not describe the main issues or elements of complexity. Re-states information provided in Statement of Work, or takes quotes directly from website 3 pts</li> <li>iii. Good Approach: Good, basic description of most of the issues and elements of complexity 7 pts</li> <li>iV. Excellent Approach: very comprehensive understanding of the main issues and complexities associated with the forecasting of expenditures for health insurance plans and the Interim Federal Health Program - 10 pts</li> </ul>	10	





R2	The Bidder's proposed approach should demonstrate the simplicity of the user interface, its ease of use and also the clarity of the results of the forecasts and the ease of their interpretation.	<ul> <li>i. Unsatisfactory Approach: No information provided. The user interface is very poorly designed and difficult to use, results of the forecast are unclear and very difficult to interpret 0 pts</li> <li>ii. Poor Approach: The user interface is poorly designed and not easy to use, results of the forecast are somewhat clear and difficult to interpret 3 pts</li> <li>iii. Good Approach: The user interface is well designed and easy to use, results of the forecast are clear and easy to interpret 7 pts</li> <li>iv. Excellent Approach: The user interface is superbly designed and intuitive to use, results of the forecast are very clear and simple to interpret - 10 pts</li> <li>Maximum Points - 10</li> </ul>	10	
R3	The Bidder should have experience in leading the development of expenditure forecasting models for health insurance plans.	<ul> <li>1-2 projects (1)</li> <li>3-5 projects (2)</li> <li>6-9 projects (3)</li> <li>&gt;9 projects (4)</li> <li>*The following information must be provided with the proposal:</li> <li>Name of the Project(s);</li> <li>Organization for which the work was performed;</li> <li>Duration of work (start and end dates in MM/YY format); and Tasks performed.</li> </ul>	4	
Minimum I	Pass Mark		17	
Total Poir	nts		24	





#### 4.1.2 Financial Evaluation

Only the proposals that are technically responsive will be considered for financial evaluation.

The price of the bid will be evaluated in Canadian dollars, applicable taxes are excluded.

For the purposes of bid evaluation, Basis of Payment, Appendix "E" will be used. The Bidder must provide all-inclusive firm price for the Work being proposed in accordance with the bid solicitation.

#### 4.1.3 Formulas in Pricing Schedule

If the Pricing Schedule provided to bidders include any formulae, Canada may re-input the prices provided by bidders into a fresh table, if Canada believes that the formulae may no longer be functioning properly in the version submitted by a bidder.





#### 4.2 Basis of Selection

#### 4.2.1 Basis of Selection - Highest Combined Rating of Technical Merit and Price

4.2.1.2 To be declared responsive, a bid must:

- a. comply with all the requirements of the bid solicitation; and
- b. meet all mandatory criteria; and
- c. obtain the required minimum of 17 points overall for the technical evaluation criteria which are subject to point rating.

The rating is performed on a scale of 24 points.

4.2.1.3 Bids not meeting (a) or (b) or (c) will be declared non-responsive.

4.2.1.4 The selection will be based on the highest responsive combined rating of technical merit and price. The ratio will be 70 % for the technical merit and 30 % for the price.

4.2.1.5 To establish the technical merit score, the overall technical score for each responsive bid will be determined as follows: total number of points obtained / maximum number of points available multiplied by the ratio of 70 %

4.2.1.6 To establish the pricing score, each responsive bid will be prorated against the lowest evaluated price and the ratio of 30 %

4.2.1.7 For each responsive bid, the technical merit score and the pricing score will be added to determine its combined rating.

4.2.1.8 Neither the responsive bid obtaining the highest technical score nor the one with the lowest evaluated price will necessarily be accepted. The responsive bid with the highest combined rating of technical merit and price will be recommended for award of a contract.

The table below illustrates an example where all three bids are responsive and the selection of the contractor is determined by a 70/30 ratio of technical merit and price, respectively. The total available points equal's 135 and the lowest evaluated price is \$45,000 (45).

Basis of Selection - Highest Combined Rating of Technical Merit (70%) and Price (30%)

		Bidder 1	Bidder 2	Bidder 3
Overall Tech	nical Score	115/135	89/135	92/135
Bid Evalua	ted Price	\$55,000.00	\$50,000.00	\$45,000.00
	Technical	115/135 x 70 = 59.63	89/135 x 70 = 46.15	92/135 x 70 = 47.70
Calculations	Merit Score			
	Pricing	45/55 x 30 = 24.55	45/50 x 30 = 27.00	45/45 x 30 = 30.00
	Score			
Combine	d rating	84.18	73.15	77.70
Overall	rating	1 <sup>st</sup>	3 <sup>rd</sup>	2 <sup>nd</sup>





### PART 5 – CERTIFICATIONS AND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Bidders must provide the required certifications and additional information to be awarded a Contract.

The certifications provided by Bidders to Canada are subject to verification by Canada at all times. Unless specified otherwise, Canada will declare a bid non-responsive, or will declare a contractor in default, if any certification made by the Bidder is found to be untrue whether during the bid evaluation period or during the contract period.

The Contracting Authority will have the right to ask for additional information to verify the Bidder's certifications. Failure to comply and to cooperate with any request or requirement imposed by the Contracting Authority will render the bid non-responsive or constitute a default under the Contract.

#### 5.1 Certifications Required with the Bid

Bidders must submit the following duly completed certifications as part of their bid.

#### 5.1.1 Integrity Provisions - Declaration of Convicted Offences

In accordance with the <u>Ineligibility and Suspension Policy</u> (<u>http://www.tpsgc-pwgsc.gc.ca/ci-if/politique-policy-eng.html</u>), the Bidder must provide with its bid the required documentation, as applicable, to be given further consideration in the procurement process.

#### 5.2 Certifications Precedent to Contract Award and Additional Information

The certifications and additional information listed below should be submitted with the bid but may be submitted afterwards. If any of these required certifications or additional information is not completed and submitted as requested, the Contracting Authority will inform the Bidder of a time frame within which to provide the information. Failure to provide the certifications or the additional information listed below within the time frame specified will render the bid non-responsive.

#### 5.2.1 Integrity Provisions – Required Documentation

In accordance with the <u>Ineligibility and Suspension Policy</u> (<u>http://www.tpsgc-pwgsc.gc.ca/ci-if/politique-policy-eng.html</u>), the Bidder must provide the required documentation, as applicable, to be given further consideration in the procurement process.

#### 5.2.2 Federal Contractors Program for Employment Equity – Bid Certification

By submitting a bid, the Bidder certifies that the Bidder, and any of the Bidder's members if the Bidder is a Joint Venture, is not named on the Federal Contractors Program (FCP) for employment equity "FCP Limited Eligibility to Bid" list available at the bottom of the page of the Employment and Social Development Canada (ESDC) - Labour's website (http://www.esdc.gc.ca/en/jobs/workplace/human\_rights/employment\_equity/federal\_contractor\_program.page?&\_ga=1.229006812.1158694905.1413548969#afed).





Canada will have the right to declare a bid non-responsive if the Bidder, or any member of the Bidder if the Bidder is a Joint Venture, appears on the "<u>FCP Limited Eligibility to Bid</u>" list at the time of contract award.

#### 5.2.3 Former Public Servant Certification

Contracts with former public servants (FPS) in receipt of a pension or of a lump sum payment must bear the closest public scrutiny, and reflect fairness in the spending of public funds. In order to comply with Treasury Board policies and directives on contracts with FPS, bidders must provide the information required below.

#### Definitions

For the purposes of this clause, "former public servant" is any former member of a department as defined in the *Financial Administration Act*, R.S., 1985, c. F-11, a former member of the Canadian Armed Forces or a former member of the Royal Canadian Mounted Police. A former public servant may be:

- a. an individual;
- b. an individual who has incorporated;
- c. a partnership made of former public servants; or
- d. a sole proprietorship or entity where the affected individual has a controlling or major interest in the entity.

"lump sum payment period" means the period measured in weeks of salary, for which payment has been made to facilitate the transition to retirement or to other employment as a result of the implementation of various programs to reduce the size of the Public Service. The lump sum payment period does not include the period of severance pay, which is measured in a like manner.

"pension" means, a pension or annual allowance paid under the <u>Public Service Superannuation</u> <u>Act</u> (PSSA), R.S., 1985, c.P-36, and any increases paid pursuant to the <u>Supplementary</u> <u>Retirement Benefits Act</u>, R.S., 1985, c.S-24 as it affects the PSSA. It does not include pensions payable pursuant to the <u>Canadian Forces Superannuation Act</u>, R.S., 1985, c.C-17, the <u>Defence</u> <u>Services Pension Continuation Act</u>, 1970, c.D-3, the <u>Royal Canadian Mounted Police Pension</u> <u>Continuation Act</u>, 1970, c.R-10, and the <u>Royal Canadian Mounted Police Superannuation Act</u>, R.S., 1985, c.R-11, the <u>Members of Parliament Retiring Allowances Act</u>, R.S., 1985, c.C-8.

#### Former Public Servant in Receipt of a Pension

As per the above definitions, is the Bidder a FPS in receipt of a pension? **Yes** () **No** () If so, the Bidder must provide the following information, for all FPS in receipt of a pension, as applicable:

- a. name of former public servant;
- b. date of termination of employment or retirement from the Public Service.





By providing this information, Bidders agree that the successful Bidder's status, with respect to being a former public servant in receipt of a pension, will be reported on departmental websites as part of the published proactive disclosure reports in accordance with <u>Contracting Policy</u> <u>Notice: 2012-2</u> and the <u>Guidelines on the Proactive Disclosure of Contracts</u>.

#### Work Force Reduction Program

Is the Bidder a FPS who received a lump sum payment pursuant to the terms of a work force reduction program? **Yes** () **No** ()

If so, the Bidder must provide the following information:

- a. name of former public servant;
- b. conditions of the lump sum payment incentive;
- c. date of termination of employment;
- d. amount of lump sum payment;
- e. rate of pay on which lump sum payment is based;
- f. period of lump sum payment including start date, end date and number of weeks;
- g. number and amount (professional fees) of other contracts subject to the restrictions of a work force reduction program.

For all contracts awarded during the lump sum payment period, the total amount of fees that may be paid to a FPS who received a lump sum payment is \$5,000, including applicable taxes.

By providing information on its status, with respect to being a former public servant in receipt of a <u>Public Service Superannuation Act</u> (PSSA) pension, the Contractor has agreed that this information will be reported on departmental websites as part of the published proactive disclosure reports, in accordance with <u>Contracting Policy Notice: 2012-2</u> of the Treasury Board Secretariat of Canada.

#### Certification

By submitting a bid, the Bidder certifies that the information submitted by the Bidder in response to the above requirements is accurate and complete.





### PART 6 - RESULTING CONTRACT CLAUSES

### **APPENDIX "A", GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS**

The following clauses and conditions apply to and form part of any contract resulting from the bid solicitation.

#### A1. Standard Acquisition Clauses and Conditions Manual

All instructions, general terms, conditions and clauses identified herein by title, number and date are set out in the Standard Acquisition Clauses and Conditions (SACC) Manual issued by Public Works and Government Services Canada (PWGSC) and in the Citizenship and Immigration Canada Terms and Conditions Manual.

- A1.1 An electronic version of the SACC Manual is available on the Buy and Sell Website: <u>https://buyandsell.gc.ca/policy-and-guidelines/standard-acquisition-clauses-and-conditions-manual</u>
- A1.2 An electronic version of the Citizenship and Immigration Canada (CIC) Contract Terms and Conditions is available on the CIC Website: <u>http://www.cic.gc.ca/english/transparency/index.asp</u>

#### A2. Terms and Conditions of the Contract

**A2.1** The general terms, conditions and clauses identified herein by title, number and date, are hereby incorporated by reference into and form part of this Contract, as though expressly set out herein, subject to any other express terms and conditions herein contained.

#### A3. Standard Instructions and Conditions

A3.1 The conditions set out in the <u>CIC-SI-001 (2016-05-26)</u> Standard Instructions – Goods or Services Competitive Requirements, are hereby incorporated by reference into and form part of this Contract.

#### A4. General Conditions

A4.1 General Conditions <u>CIC-GC-001 (2016-05-26)</u>, Med/High Complexity Goods and Services Contract shall apply to and form part of this Contract.





### **APPENDIX "B", SUPPLEMENTAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS**

#### B1. Priority of Documents

If there is a discrepancy between the wording of any documents that appear on the list below, the wording of the first document that appears on the list has priority.

- a) The Articles of Agreement;
- b) Appendix "B" Supplemental Terms and Conditions;
- c) Appendix "A" General Terms and Conditions;
- d) Appendix "C" Terms of Payment;
- e) Appendix "D" Statement of Work;
- f) Appendix "E" Basis of Payment
- g) Appendix "F" Security Requirement Checklist (SRCL);
- h) Appendix "G" Vendor Information and Authorization Form;
- i) the Contractor's proposal dated \_\_\_\_\_(TBD)

#### B2. CIC Clauses

The following Citizenship and Immigration Canada Terms and Conditions are incorporated by reference and form part of this Contract:



#### B3. SACC Manual Clauses

The following SACC manual Clauses are incorporated by reference and form part of this Contract:

ID	Date	Title
A9117C	2007-11-30	T1204 - Direct Request by Customer Department
A9116C	2007-11-30	T1204 Information Reporting by Contractor
C0705C	2010-01-11	Discretionary Audit

#### B4. Security Requirement

There is no security requirement associated with the requirement.

#### **B5.** Period of Contract

The period of the Contract is from date of contract award to June 30, 2017.





.

#### B6. Termination on Thirty (30) Days Notice

- 1. Canada reserves the right to terminate the Contract at any time in whole or in part by giving thirty (30) calendar days written notice to the Contractor.
- 2. In the event of such termination, Canada will only pay for costs incurred for services rendered and accepted by Canada up to the date of the termination. Despite any other provision of the Contract, there will be no other costs that will be paid to the Contractor as a result of the termination.

#### **B7.** Certifications / Compliance and Additional Information

Unless specified otherwise, the continuous compliance with the certifications provided by the Contractor in its bid or precedent to contract award, and the ongoing cooperation in providing additional information are conditions of the Contract and failure to comply will constitute the Contractor in default. Certifications are subject to verification by Canada during the entire period of the Contract.

#### **B8.** Insurance Requirements

The Contractor is responsible for deciding if insurance coverage is necessary to fulfill its obligation under the Contract and to ensure compliance with any applicable law. Any insurance acquired or maintained by the Contractor is at its own expense and for its own benefit and protection. It does not release the Contractor from or reduce its liability under the Contract.

#### **B9.** Closure of Government Offices

Contractor personnel are employees of the Contractor and are paid by the Contractor on the basis of services rendered. Where Contractor's employees are providing services on government premises pursuant to this Contract and the said premises become non accessible and consequently no Work is being performed as a result of the closure, Canada will not be liable for payment to the Contractor for the period of closure.

#### B10. Statement of Work

The Contractor must perform the Work in accordance with the Statement of Work in Appendix "D".

#### B11. Authorities

#### **B11.1 Contracting Authority**

The Contracting Authority for the Contract is:

#### < The Contracting Authority for the Contract is to be identified at Contract award>

The Contracting Authority is responsible for the management of the Contract and any changes to the Contract must be authorized in writing by the Contracting Authority. The Contractor must





not perform work in excess of or outside the scope of the Contract based on verbal or written requests or instructions from anybody other than the Contracting Authority.

#### B11.2 Project Authority

The Project Authority for the Contract is:

#### <The Project Authority for the Contract is to be identified at Contract award>

The Project Authority is the representative of the department or agency for whom the Work is being carried out under the Contract and is responsible for all matters concerning the technical content of the Work under the Contract. Technical matters may be discussed with the Project Authority; however, the Project Authority has no authority to authorize changes to the scope of the Work. Changes to the scope of the Work can only be made through a contract amendment issued by the Contracting Authority.



### APPENDIX "C", TERMS OF PAYMENT

#### C1. Basis of Payment

In consideration of the Contractor satisfactorily completing all of its obligations under the Contract, the Contractor will be paid a firm price as specified in Appendix "E", Basis of Payment for a cost of \$ \_\_\_\_\_\_ (insert the amount at contract award). Customs duties are included and applicable taxes are extra.

Canada will not pay the Contractor for any design changes, modifications or interpretations of the Work, unless they have been approved, in writing, by the Contracting Authority before their incorporation into the Work.

#### C2. Method of Payment

Canada will make milestone payments upon completion and delivery of each deliverable in accordance with the Schedule of Payments below of the Contract if:

- an accurate and complete invoice and any other documents required by the Contract have been submitted in accordance with the invoicing instructions provided in the Contract;
- b) all such documents have been verified by Canada;
- c) the Work delivered has been accepted as described in Appendix D Statement of Work by Canada.

Milestone #	Description of Deliverables	Delivery Date	Percentage of Bidder's Firm Price
1	Milestone 1 - Work plan, list of variables and key assumptions, expenditure forecasting model, verification of model against historical expenditures	March 24, 2017	50% of Bidder's Firm Price
2	Milestone 2 - Word document explaining the methodology used to develop the model, Worksheet supporting the model, Provide one (1) training session of three (3) hours, Power Point presentation summarizing the model, two (2) presentations describing the model to senior officials at IRCC and the Treasury Board Secretariat/Central Agency Officials	June 30, 2017	50% of Bidder's Firm Price





#### C3. Applicable Taxes

Applicable taxes are not included in the amounts shown in the Basis of Payment. Applicable taxes, which are estimated at \$\_\_\_\_\_ (to be determined at contract award), are included in the total contract amount. Applicable taxes are to be shown as separate items on all invoices and claims for progress payments and will be paid by Canada. The Contractor agrees to remit to appropriate tax authorities any amounts of Applicable Taxes paid or due.

#### C4. Invoicing Instructions

The Contractor must submit invoices in accordance with the section entitled "Invoice Submission" of the general conditions. Invoices cannot be submitted until all work identified in the invoice is completed.

#### C5. Travel and Living Expenses

"Canada will not accept any travel and living expenses for:

- a) Work performed within the National Capital Region (NCR). The NCR is defined in the National Capital Act, R.S.C. 1985, c. N-4, S.2. The National Capital Act is available on the Justice Website: http://laws.justice.gc.ca./en/N-4/;
- b) Any travel between the Contractor's place of business and the NCR; and
- c) Any relocation of resources required to satisfy the terms of the Contract.

These expenses are included in the firm price specified above."



### APPENDIX "D", STATEMENT OF WORK

#### D1. Title

#### Interim Federal Health Program (IFHP) Forecasting Model

#### D2. Objective

Immigration, Refugee, Citizenship and Immigration Canada (IRCC) has a requirement for a Contractor to update the automated Interim Federal Health Program (IFHP) expenditure forecasting model.

#### D3. Background

The IFHP is administered by IRCC, Migration Health Branch, and provides limited, temporary health coverage for specific groups of people. The IFHP is a payer of last resort when the beneficiary has no access to any provincial or territorial (PT) health-care coverage or private health coverage.

It is essential that an accurate forecasting model be used to anticipate current and future costs to the IFHP. Failure to accurately forecast program expenditures may result in significant gaps between anticipated and actual expenditures for a given fiscal year, thus leading to funding deficits or surpluses.

A recent decision has resulted in significant changes to the coverage of services, eligibility of certain refugee groups, and the length of coverage. In light of these changes, which came into effect April 1, 2016; IRCC has determined that an update of the IFHP forecasting tool is required in order to successfully estimate and manage IFHP expenditures based on the new program policies. The new coverage and eligibility is very similar to what was provided before the changes implemented in June 2012 and is described below in the section "Summary of Changes to the Interim Federal Health Program (IFHP) effective April 1, 2016".

Further information on the IFHP can be found on the IRCC website at: <u>http://www.cic.gc.ca/english/refugees/outside/summary-ifhp.asp</u>

#### Summary of Changes to the Interim Federal Health Program (IFHP) effective April 1, 2016:

All individuals eligible for coverage under the IFHP receive full health-care coverage, which includes:

- Basic health-care services (i.e. standard physician and hospital care);
- Supplemental services, including limited vision and urgent dental care; and
- Prescription drug coverage

The IFHP provides limited, temporary coverage of health-care benefits to people in the following groups who aren't eligible for provincial or territorial (PT) health insurance:

- Protected persons, including resettled refugees;
- Refugee claimants; and
- Certain other groups.





#### D4. Tasks/Deliverables

The Contractor must complete the following tasks and submit the required deliverables in hard and soft copy under two milestones including but not limited to:

#### Milestone 1 (must be completed and submitted by March 24, 2017):

- a) Develop a comprehensive work plan detailing key steps to be completed for approval by the Project Authority (PA) one week after Contract award;
- b) Identify and provide a list of all variables and key assumptions that could have an effect on Program expenses. The variables include (but are not limited to) the age group, gender, time spent on the Program, current eligible population, future eligible population, expenses and inflation by type of medical care;
- c) Develop an expenditure forecasting model to reflect April 1, 2016 changes to the IFHP in an MS Excel spreadsheet (or acceptable equivalent) form. The spreadsheet form must include notes and assumptions, with capability for IRCC users to enter and update information and variables on key parameters including current and expected population, demographic variables and inflation by type of care.
- d) Verify the model against historical expenditures to test the robustness of the model. A table summarizing the results of the model against actual expenditures of the IFHP must then be provided.

#### Milestone 2 (must be completed and submitted by June 30, 2017):

- a) Provide a Word document explaining the methodology used to develop the model, all hidden worksheets and formulas used in the forecasting model as well as a Worksheet supporting the model, the assumptions, and the probabilities, and documentation explaining the process to execute the model;
- b) Provide one (1) training session of three (3) hours to IRCC's officers on the utilization of the forecasting model and explaining the intricacies of the model and how to modify key parameters. This training session can be delivered in person, via teleconference, or via web conference;
- c) Prepare a Power Point presentation summarizing the model;
- d) Deliver two (2) presentations describing the model to senior officials at IRCC and the Treasury Board Secretariat/Central Agency Officials. The presentation would describe: assumptions for the forecasting model and how to use it, as well as potential future modifications.

#### D5. Limitations and Constraints

The Contractor must be ready to work with the Project Authority and other departmental personnel as required.

The Contractor must keep all documents and proprietary Crown information confidential and return all materials, including documents and files, belonging to IRCC upon completion of the contract to IRCC

All work performed will be subject to the inspection and acceptance by the Project Authority. All draft and final documents will be approved by the Project Authority prior to distribution. Should the work not meet the expectations of the Project Authority, the Contractor must re-submit revised (acceptable work) at no additional cost to IRCC.





#### D6. Official Languages

The Contractor must provide services in either English or French.

#### D7. Travel

All work associated with this SOW is planned to be carried out in the National Capital Region (NCR) and no travel is expected outside the NCR.

#### D8. Availability of Personnel

The Contractor certifies that he/she, its employees and subcontractors will be available to commence performance of the work from the Contract award date and will remain available to perform the work in relation to the fulfillment of this requirement.





### **APPENDIX "E", BASIS OF PAYMENT**

During the period of the contract, the Contractor will be paid as specified below, for Work performed in accordance with the Contract.

All deliverables are F.O.B. Destination, and Canadian Customs Duty included and applicable taxes are extra.

For bid evaluation and contractor(s) selection purposes only, the evaluated price of a bid will be determined in accordance with this Basis of Payment, Appendix "E".

Canada's total liability to the Contractor under the Contract shall not exceed \$35,000.00 including all travel expenses and excluding applicable taxes. All cost/price proposals exceeding this amount will render the bidder's proposal non-responsive, and will be eliminated from the competition.

Payment will be made upon successful completion of each deliverable and acceptance by the Project Authority as detailed in the Schedule of Payments in Appendix "C", Terms of Payment, and Article C2. Method of Payment

The price of the bid will be evaluated in Canadian Dollars, the Goods and Services Tax or the Harmonized Sales Tax excluded, FOB destination.

	Period of Contract	Firm Price
IFHP Forecast Model Update	From Contract Award to June 30, 2017	<to be="" by="" completed="" the<br="">bidder&gt;</to>
TOTAL CONTRACT VALUE (E	<to be="" by="" completed="" the<br="">bidder&gt;</to>	





### APPENDIX "F", SECURITY REQUIREMENTS CHECKLIST (SRCL)

There is no security requirement associated with the requirement.





# APPENDIX "G", VENDOR INFORMATION AND AUTHORIZATION FORM

Vendor Name and Address

Legal Status (incorporated, registered, etc.)

GST or HST Registration Number and/or Procurement Business Number (Revenue Canada)

Name and Title of Person authorized to sign on behalf of Vendor

Print Name \_\_\_\_\_ Title \_\_\_\_\_

Signature \_\_\_\_\_ Date \_\_\_\_\_

Central	Point c	of Contact
---------	---------	------------

The Vendor has designated the following individual as a central point of contact for all matters pertaining to the proposed contract, including the provision of all information that may be requested:

Name and Title		
Telephone	Fax	
Email		

Each proposal must include a copy of this page properly completed and signed.

